
E-Rate 16 Internal Connection Q&A 4  

1. Met West School and Laurel CDC are scheduled to be demolished soon. Will these 
sites still be included in the proposal? 

Yes.  Proposed floor plans for these sites will be emailed to everyone who 
attended the pre-bid meeting within 24 hours.   

2. Stonehurst CDC is still under construction and was excluded from the walks. Will this 
school still be included in the proposal? If the answer is yes how would the details for 
the site be presented for bid purposes? 

Yes.  Proposed floor plan for this site will be emailed to everyone who attended 
the pre-bid meeting within 24 hours.   

3. In specification Part A page 25 under Fiber Optic Cables item 1 states “Install 12 
strand or 24-strand multi-mode and single-mode OSP fiber cable from MDF to each 
IDF”. Please clarify the strand count and type of fiber required for this proposal. 

12 strands for Elementary schools. 24 strand fiber for Middle schools and High 
schools. Multi-mode fiber cables for within the building connections. Single-mode 
fiber cables for building to building connections. 

4. There was a question about what type of contractor’s license is required for the 
project asked in a previous RFI. The answer was “Minimum C7. C10 is also 
acceptable”. A lot of the work included in the scope for this project requires a C10 
license. How would a C7 only licensed contractor accomplish the work that’s required to 
have a C10 licensed contactor perform? 

Depends on the cabling work specific to each site. Some sites do not require C10. 

5. It is our understanding that Cole and La Escuelita Data Centers are going to require 
equipment only and no cabling. Is that correct? 

Please refer to the RFP. 

6. The SmartNet warranty is not eligible per SLD regulations. Should it be listed 
separately as a non-eligible cost item?  

SmartNet is covered by Erate within the first year. No need to separate SmartNet 
as a non-eligible cost item. 

7. If in any case there are changes to a school site post bid and prior to commencing 
work will change orders be accepted?  

Generally no.  Unless there is a significant change of scope.   



8. Please confirm that the Data Centers at Cole and La Escuelita are NOT SLD eligible. 

Yes, both Data Centers a Cole and La Escuelita are Erate eligible. 

9. How will the District qualify and quantify the bidder’s proposal to make sure they meet 
the OUSD/SLBE requirements?  

Please refer to the RFP. 

10. This is a big project involving over 70 Schools, we hereby request an extension 

of the bid due date from February 8thto February 23rd. Is this agreeable to 

OUSD? 

No. The bid due date is February 8th, 2013 before 2:00pm. 

Question: Will OUSD reconsider providing a two (2) week extension from the current 
due date so that pricing can be more aggressive, local DVBE partners could have a 
larger participation rate and reduce potential over site because of the complexity, 
quantity of sites and challenging campus dynamics? This would assist all vendors and 
should provide OUSD with more complete and accurate responses. 

No. 

11. Upon ordering the equipment will it be stored at the OUSD facilities? If so, once 

the equipment is delivered will OUSD accept ownership and thus sign off for SLD 

payment to Respondent? 

No, the equipment will be stored at the bidder facilities. OUSD will sign off for 
payment from the SLD after the project has been completed. 

Question: Will OUSD reconsider payment terms for all technology equipment based on 
Net 30 from time of arrival on OUSD site or selected vendor site? If the answer is “no”, 
for the equipment, would OUSD agree to paying cost of money fee which is charged by 
manufactures? Furthermore, will OUSD reconsider professional service payment terms 
to defined scope of work “milestone payments” every two weeks? Yes to both request 
should increase the number of responses. 

OUSD and USAC will make progress payments as schools are signed off.  Bidder 
should time equipment deliveries to match the project schedule. 

 



12. Will performance bond by school site be accepted? 

No. 

13. Will OUSD allow performance bond on labor and cabling only? 

No. The entire project cost must be bonded. 

Question: Will OUSD reconsider performance bond based on two (2) or four (4) school 
sites at a time? This will mitigate all risk to OUSD while reducing exorbitant cost to the 
district. Additionally, it should increase the number of responses to OUSD project. 

OUSD will consider performance bond based on a group of schools at a time.  
Bidder should propose how sites will be grouped.   

14. Please confirm that Stonehurst CDC is not part of ERATE 16 

Stonehurst CDC is part of E-Rate 16.  

15. Are we supposed to provide switches/routers for the newly added ports or replace 
all existing switching / routing equipment that does not meet the new Districts standard. 
Please clarify this for both groups. 

We are not replacing all existing switching/routing equipment. Please follow the 
RFP specifications to augment the existing equipment that meets the District's 
standards. 

During the sitewalks, we were not able to access all IDFs and see what network gear is 
inside. Therefore, we were not able to see if that equipment meets district standards. 
How shall we proceed for those unknown IDFs? 

The existing equipment doesn't meet the District's new standards. However, we 
are not replacing the existing equipment. We want to add new equipment to 
enhance our network. Please refer to the RFP for the new classroom/MDF/IDF and 
equipment standards to provide the appropriate response for each school site 
and Data Centers. 

 

16. RFP asks to upgrade existing system. Can OUSD please provide technical details 
on this current system- Part numbers, current users, license information, HW platform 

During the site walks, the technical details of the current system should have 
been gathered. 



17. What are the number of PRI connections and what locations are PRI connections 
at? 

Data Center and Hot Site. They failover to each other. 

18. How many analog connections are at each location? 

This question is irrelevant. 

19. Please describe the dial plan in detail in use today at OUSD 

Four digit dialing for internal calls  

20. Will IP paging be required? 

Some schools require IP Paging. 

21. Will a call center be required? If so, how many users and how many calls per day? 

No call center is required. 

22. Will Cisco Emergency Responder be implemented? 

Yes, the call will go to FXO to an outside line including 911 calls. 

23. Please provide any network diagrams floorplans and/or maps for the following 
schools: 

a. Main Data Center 

No. 

b. Secondary Data Center 

No. 

c. Laurel CDC 

Yes. 

d. Stonehurst CDC 

Yes. 

24. How many libraries are there across the district? 



Most schools have one. 

a. How many access points per library does the district require? 

One AP for Elementary 

Two AP’s for Middle 

Three AP’s for High School 

b. How many phones per library does the district require? 

1 IP phone for each library in the Elementary schools. 2 IP phones 
for each library in the Middle schools. 3 IP phones for each library 
in the High schools. 

 

25. How many IP paging speakers does the district currently use? 

Two Schools have IP Paging speakers. 

26. How many IP clocks does the district currently use? 

Two Schools have IP clocks. 

27. Will WLAN VoIP phones be used within the district? 

No. 

28. How do you currently authenticate WLAN users? Do you wish this to change? 

Cisco ACS. No, we will continue to use Cisco ACS. 

29. The RFP calls for respondent to install 2 Cisco C3KX-NM-10G= in the top WS-
C3750X switch in the MDF. The 3750X switches can only support one module. Would 
OUSD want 2 3750X switches each configured with a 10G module, or just 1 3750X 
switch with one 10G module? 

In a Catalyst 3750X stack, we want 2 of the Catalyst 3750X switches to each have 
1 C3KX-NM-10G= to connect to the uplink switch via 10G connectivity. 

30. Redundant components are not E-rate eligible. Does OUSD still want respondent to 
quote the redundant power supply for the 4500X switch? 



Please refer to the RFP specifications. The Catalyst 4500X top level part number 
doesn't include power supplies and therefore the power supply is added as a 
separate line item. This power supply is the primary power supply and not a 
redundant power supply.  

31. Is there a user count breakdown per site/school for the number of voice user 
licenses required? 

Provision of SRST licenses is not included in this RFP. 

32. Due to site walks taking two extra days we would like to request the bid date moved 
back to Feb 19th 2013. 

No. 

33. The specs say 15 drops in the class rooms if there are (8) existing does that mean 
we only need to add (7) more? 

Please refer the Group 1 and Group 2 of the RFP specification. 

34. The specs say add 36 feet in each classroom if there is less than 36 feet existing do 
we add the difference to each classroom even if there is enough to house the extra 
cabling?  

Please clarify the question.  We will respond within 24 hours of receiving 
clarification. 

35. When we were on the walks, we were provided evacuation plans for most of the 
schools, but not all. The problem is that the evacuation plans for the school we did get 
don’t show all of the classroom counts, computer labs, or offices, etc. We brought this 
up at the walks and were told by Richard that he would be providing us a complete 
count of these rooms after the walk, mainly because there wasn’t time to walk all of the 
building of all of the sites and get these counts. When will these counts be provided? 

Please refer to the site plans. 

36. The specs say to provide 15 drops per classroom, but on the walk we were told it 
was only to be 8? Is it 15 or 8 drops in the classrooms? 

15 drops. 

37. It does not say in the specs, but are we tp provide all new cabling to the existing 
classrooms or can we re-use the existing drops that exist and add extra cables to meet 
the required amount? Basically if a classroom has 8 existing CAT6 cables in the them, 
can we consider these part of the 15 and only provide 7 additional or are we to demo 
them out and provide all 15 as new drops? 



Please refer the Group 1 and Group 2 of the RFP. 

 

 

38. In the specs underneath Category 6 cables it reads “Install one dedicated 20 amp 
circuit for every four network data jacks installed. Install one duplex electrical receptacle 
for every network data jack installed” . It is our belief that power cannot be included in 
erate projects. We did not walk the power portion of these at our job walks. Are we to 
eliminate this from our proposal? 

Please only include the Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) as specified on the 
RFP since it is Erate Eligible. 

39. During the walks we were unable to gain access to all MDF and IDF equipment for a 
proper assessment of specific equipment needs. Will you please provide appropriate 
detail needed in regards to the equipment needed by MDF/IDF for each of the sites. 
This is needed to ensure an appropriate response is provided. 

Site walks and site plans include all the necessary information.  

40. We did not see any single mode fiber optic cabling from the MDF to 
 the IDF's, is single mode cabling needed to be quoted from each MDF to the 
 IDF's under this E-RATE? 

Yes, single mode fiber cabling is required for building to building connectivity. 
Please include this as part of the bid response. 
 
41. For group 1, under notes on scope of work there is a N,V in the 
 column. Under the definition of notes (under the letter N) it reads "Rewire 
 site with NEW cables to MDF, IDF standard." Does this mean that if the site 
 has existing CAT 6 cables, do we need to demo them out and supply new CAT6? 

Yes, all new cables are required for Group 1 sites 
 
42. For group 2, under notes on scope of work there is a E,V in the 
 column. Under the definition of notes (under the letter V) it reads "Test 
 (recertify), repair and add new wiring where applicable to meet all cable 
 standards". The cable standard is CAT6. If the CAT6 exists can we use 
 existing and just add the new amounts to equal 15. 

Yes. 
 



43. What cabling work needs to be done in Group 2. We were told only 
 WAP's and clocks. Is this correct? 

Please refer to the RFP for the cabling work required in Group 2 sites. 

 
44. Under the specs under the "Category 6 cables" it specifies AL4000 
 for the CR and CL's. Nothing is mentioned with regards to raceway in the 
 Auditoriums, Multipurpose rooms or Staff Areas. Can we use 700 series 
 Wiremold or EMT raceway in these areas? 

No, please use AL4000. 

 
45. Are power strips required for all the existing racks, Cabinets or 
 just the new racks and cabinets we are installing? 

The power strips are required for all the existing racks and Cabinets including 
new and existing racks and cabinets. 


